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TO:   Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:  Val Alexeeff, Director 
 
STAFF  Greg Mohr 
CONTACT:  Comprehensive Planning Division 
 
SUBJECT: Hearing to consider response to California Coastal Commission regarding 

proposed changes to the Toro Canyon Plan 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
That the Board of Supervisors: 
 

1. Consider various options for responding to the California Coastal Commission regarding 
changes proposed by Commission staff to the Toro Canyon Plan as an amendment to the 
county�s certified Local Coastal Program; 

2. Approve staff�s recommended option to urge the Commission to certify the Toro Canyon 
Plan as submitted, and transmit the attached letter to the Commission for consideration at 
their hearing in Los Angeles on Thursday, November 6. 

 
Alignment with Board Strategic Plan:  The recommendations are primarily aligned with Goal 
No. 1., An Efficient Government Able to Respond Effectively to the Needs of the Community, 
Goal No. 4., A Community that is Economically Vital and Sustainable, and Goal No. 5., A High 
Quality of Life for All Residents. 
 
Executive Summary and Discussion:  The Toro Canyon Plan was adopted by the Santa Barbara 
County Board of Supervisors in February 2002, and was submitted to the Coastal Commission in 
May 2002 as a proposed amendment to the county�s certified Local Coastal Program (LCP). The 
Commission staff accepted it for processing in August 2002, and in November 2002 the statutory 
deadline for action was extended by the Commission for one year, to November 2003. 
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The Coastal Commission�s original staff report was released on September 25, 2003, and 
recommended 172 separate modifications to the Toro Canyon Plan as approved by the county. This 
lengthy staff report is attached to this agenda report for the Board members, and a copy is available 
for review by others in the Clerk of the Board�s office. Many of these changes are substantial and 
problematic. The Commission heard this item at its meeting in San Diego on October 8, 2003, and 
the item was continued to their next hearing in November in Los Angeles. Due to the Commission�s 
statutory deadlines, this will be the last opportunity for the Commission to act on this matter. 
 
Staff was unable to bring this matter to the Board prior to the October 8 Coastal Commission 
hearing due to the late release of the extensive staff report. However, on October 1, P&D 
prepared and sent a letter to the Commission outlining our broad concerns over the scope and 
magnitude of the proposed changes and requesting a continuance to the November meeting. A 
copy of this letter was attached to the Board letter for setting today�s hearing, which appeared on 
the Board�s agenda of October 21. Staff also attended the October 8 Commission hearing. Staff�s 
comments generally emphasized the points made in the letter, including: 

• The extensive local review process that occurred, which concluded in reaching a delicate 
balance in the adopted Toro Canyon Plan; 

• The disruptive nature of extensive modifications by the Commission after the local public 
process; 

• The appropriate role of the Commission to ensure that Local Coastal Program 
amendments are consistent with the Coastal Act rather than re-writing the work of local 
agencies �to make it better�; 

• The chilling effect that this approach, which we also experienced in the Carpinteria 
Greenhouse Program, may have on local governments� future efforts to update their 
LCPs; 

• The current LCP will continue to apply in Toro Canyon unless and until the Plan is 
certified, with the current LCP being less protective of resources and allowing more 
development potential. 

 
Staff also reviewed examples of problematic suggested modifications, including those related to 
water quality, flood control, fire protection, biological resources, and the repair and replacement 
of non-conforming structures. 
 
The Coastal Commission staff emphasized five major areas where they believe the Toro Canyon 
Plan is deficient:  biological resources; water quality; agriculture (related to development on 
steep slopes and where native cover removal occurs, as well as to the county�s proposed 
rezoning of seven small lots at Foothill & Toro Canyon Roads from AG-I-40 to 2-E-1); 
protection of scenic resources; and their proposed new Watershed Protection Overlay District. 
After careful consideration, county staff does not believe that the Plan is deficient or inconsistent 
with the Coastal Act. While the Plan may not be the �ideal� plan, it is the best compromise that 
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the county could find to address coastal resource protection and community concerns, and it is 
sufficiently protective and consistent with the Coastal Act. 
 
Comments made by individual Coastal Commissioners present at the October 8 hearing were 
sympathetic to the county and the points made by the county. The Commission gave direction to 
its staff to work with county staff over the ensuing weeks to substantially narrow the scope of 
proposed changes prior to the November meeting. 
 
The Commission also requested the County to consider withdrawing and resubmitting the Plan to 
allow more time to work with Commission staff on their proposed modifications. County staff 
met with the Commission staff three times, with one meeting focusing on water quality and two 
on the bulk of the suggested modifications. The Commission staff should complete their staff 
report by the end of the day on Wednesday October 22, and copies of this staff report will be 
delivered to the Board as soon as possible. 
 
Options for response to the Coastal Commission. There are several ways in which the Board 
can respond to the Coastal Commission in light of the last hearing. 
 
1. Withdraw and re-submit the proposed Toro Canyon Plan LCP Amendment. This would 

allow more time to discuss changes with the Commission staff, as well as for the 
Commission to hold additional hearings, possibly including one in Santa Barbara in April 
2004. However, this would allow up to another fifteen months of Commission review (initial 
90 days plus a one-year extension), during which time the Toro Canyon Plan would not be in 
effect within the Coastal Zone. This option would require substantial additional staff time. 
Since the budget for Plan adoption has been exhausted, this option would defer other work 
currently being undertaken in Comprehensive Planning or require additional resources to 
accomplish. Staff does not recommend this option. 

 
2. Present a counter-proposal to the Commission. This would involve recommending that the 

Commission adopt a county-proposed modification of its own staff�s recommendations, 
wherein the county would tentatively agree to some changes in exchange for others being 
dropped. One obvious problem is the complexity of such a proposal, and the very limited 
time left for the Board to consider which changes might be acceptable and which would not. 
Also, the Board could not foreclose its future discretion in reviewing the Commission�s 
ultimate action and either accepting, rejecting, or proposing changes to any modifications 
approved by the Commission. Staff does not recommend this option. 

 
3. Recommend that the Commission certify the Plan as submitted. The Toro Canyon Plan 

represents an update and improvement in the LCP as it applies to this area, and has been 
prepared to be consistent with the state Coastal Act. This option would request that the 
Commission recognize the substantial time and care that the county invested in preparing and 
adopting the Plan, including the active participation of numerous local residents and other 
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agencies. The only changes that would be made to the Plan as adopted by the Board in 
February 2002 would be to revise the various map figures affected by the Commission�s 
approval of the Coastal Zone Boundary Adjustment in June 2003. Staff recommends this 
option, as reflected in the attached letter for transmittal from the Board to the 
Commission. 

If the Commission nevertheless acts to certify with modifications as recommended by their 
staff, the Board would be faced with the choice of either agreeing to all of the Commission�s 
proposed changes, or proposing further modifications which then would be submitted for 
another round of review by the Commission. In the latter instance, several iterations of this 
loop are conceivable over the course of months or even years. 

 
Mandates and Service Levels:  No immediate change in mandates or service levels. This is an 
expected part of processing the Toro Canyon Plan LCP Amendment, although much more 
extensive than anticipated. 
 
Fiscal and Facilities Impacts:  Work on the Coastal Commission certification phase of the Toro 
Canyon Plan was funded in the latter part of last fiscal year (2002-03) and in the current fiscal 
year (2003-04) through a $40,000 Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) grant. Due to the 
extensive amount of effort involved in reviewing the Coastal Commission�s proposed changes, 
this grant has been nearly exhausted ($1,926.57 remaining as of 9/30/03). Additional work to 
date certainly has more than used the remainder of the CIAP grant funds. 
 
Should the Coastal Commission act to certify the Plan with changes, this would require an 
unknown but substantial amount of future staff time, materials, mailing, and hearing costs 
associated with reviewing the changes and responding back to the Commission. Such effort 
would require either an augmentation of P&D�s budget, or an adjustment of work priorities to 
delay or cancel some programmed work efforts. 
 
Special instructions:  P&D will transmit the signed Board letter to the Coastal Commission and 
other copied parties. 
 
 
Attachments: Proposed letter from the Board to the Coastal Commission 
 First Coastal Commission staff report, September 2003 (Board member copies 

and Clerk of the Board file only) 
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